LOCAL MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

BETWEEN

NATIONAL POSTAL MAIL HANDLERS UNION MID-HUDSON BRANCH LOCAL 300 AFL-CIO

AND

UNITED STATES POSTAL SERVICE MID-HUDSON P&DC NEWBURGH, NY 12555

HP.

Table of Contents

ITEM A: Additional or longer wash up periods	3
ITEM B: Guidelines for the curtailment or termination of postal operations to conform to orders of local authorities or as local conditions warrant because of emergency conditions	3
ITEM C: Formulation of a local leave program.	4
ITEM D: The duration of the choice vacation period	5
ITEM E: The determination of the beginning day of an employee's vacation peri	od 5
ITEM F: Whether employee's at their option may request two selections during choice vacation period, in units of either 5 or 10 days	
ITEM G: Whether jury duty and attendance at National or State conventions sharped to the choice vacation period	all be 6
ITEM H: Determination of the maximum number of employees who shall receive leave during the choice vacation period	⁄e
ITEM I: The issuance of official notices to each employee of the vacation schedu approved for him/her.	
ITEM J: Determination of the date and means of notifying employees of the beginning of the new leave year.	
ITEM K: Procedures for submissions of applications for annual leave during oth than the choice period	
ITEM L: Whether overtime desired lists in Article 8 of the National Agreement she by section and/or tour.	9
ITEM M, N and O: Light Duty Assignments.	11
ITEM P: The identification of assignments comprising a section when it is proporto reassign within an installation employees excess to the needs of a section	osed
ITEM Q: The assignment of Mail Handler Union parking spaces	13
ITEM R: The determination as to whether annual leave to attend Union activities requested prior to determination of the choice vacation schedule is to be part of	f the
total choice vacation plan.	
ITEM S: Other items which are subject to local negotiations. I. Bidding	
· ·	
ITEM T: Local implementation of this Agreement relating to seniority, reassignment and posting	
I. Seniority	15
II. Temporary reassignmentsIII. Posting	
114: 1 UJLIKE 2231001000710024040000244511100010000129701300000111111010000000000000000000000	****** . /



ITEM A: Additional or longer wash up periods

- 1. Mail Handlers shall be granted a 5 minute wash up period before lunch and 5 minutes at the end of the tour. On overtime, 5 minutes at the end of overtime.
- 2. Additional wash up time may be granted by a supervisor if the supervisor deems necessary.

ITEM B: Guidelines for the curtailment or termination of postal operations to conform to orders of local authorities or as local conditions warrant because of emergency conditions.

- 1. Termination of postal operations to conform to orders of local authorities, or as local conditions warrant because of emergency conditions, shall be based upon information available, and received from Local, State and National Authorities and other official sources. Overall determination will be made by the installation head.
- 2. Mail Handlers must call the emergency HOT LINE when the conditions listed in #3 are confronted prior to reporting.
- 3. Consideration will be given to:
 - A. Acts of God, such as storms, fire, floods, etc.
 - B. Civil disorders.
 - C. Environmental conditions, such as lack of water, or lack of mechanical climate control (equipment breakdown).
 - D. Bomb threats.

JRP

4. The Mail Handlers Union, Branch President (in the event there is no Branch President then it shall be Local 300's designee) or Shop Stewards, will be consulted on any information relating to this item.

ITEM C: Formulation of a local leave program.

- 1. Article 10 of the National Agreement will be the guideline in formulating the local leave program.
- 2. Choice annual leave selections will be granted by seniority, section and tour.
- 3. The number of Mail Handlers allowed on annual leave at one time during non-choice vacation time will be 15% per section. With respect to the initial vacation sign up, Mail Handlers will make one selection in non-choice, not to exceed 15 days.
- 4. Mail Handlers must submit, in duplicate, an initial vacation sign up form to their supervisor, properly completed, by the deadline date in order to be given vacation consideration. The supervisor shall sign the employees copy upon receipt of the receiving the sign up form.
- 5. Any Mail Handler who has served over 4 months (consecutive) as a 204B shall have his/her vacation choices posted to the craft.
- 6. A. Military and Union leave shall not count towards the percentages.
 - B. Requests for leave and 3189 to conduct official union business by Local 300 Union Officials shall not be unreasonable denied.
- 7. All Mail Handlers are required to take all pre-scheduled annual leave unless:
- a. They notify their supervisor in writing (PS Form 3971) that they are turning back the pre-scheduled leave. This notification must be within five (5) days of the first leave day.

JRP James

- b. Employees are required to turn back full weeks (40 hours).
- c. Nothing prevents employees turning back full weeks from requesting a single day or days in the same week, under the provisions of Item K of the local leave policy. The employee turning back the leave will have first choice "exclusively" for the leave days in the turn back week and said request for the day or days by the employee turning back the leave will have the request approved.
- 8. Employees requesting to turn back pre-scheduled single days may do so in writing (PS Form 3971) as far in advance as possible, but not less than eight (8) hours before the leave day.
- 9. Any Mail Handler failing to follow the above procedure may be sent home on any day they report to work that they had pre-scheduled leave for.

ITEM D: The duration of the choice vacation period.

- 1. The Mail Handler choice vacation period will be April 1 through September 30, plus the 10 day deer hunting season which usually occurs the third week of November, and the period of December 26th thru January 1st.
- 2. All other periods will be considered non-choice.

ITEM E: The determination of the beginning day of an employee's vacation period.

1. The beginning of a vacation schedule will be the beginning day of the service week, which is Saturday, except for the period of December 26th thru January 1st.

John John Marie Ma

ITEM F: Whether employee's at their option may request two selections during choice vacation period, in units of either 5 or 10 days.

1. A. Mail Handlers who earn 13 days of annual leave per year will be granted up to two selections in choice, in either one (1) ten day pick or two (2) picks of five days each, not to exceed 10 days.

B. Mail Handlers who earn either 20 or 26 days of annual leave per year will be granted up to three selections in choice, in either one (1) 15 day pick or two (2) picks of one 10 day and one 5 day or three (3) picks of five days each, not to exceed 15 days.

- 2. A second round, in seniority order, for choice vacation weeks will be afforded to Mail Handlers with sufficient leave to cover the open periods (see Article 10.5, C and C1).
- 3. Employees shall be permitted to use their remaining Annual Leave days at other times during the leave year, based upon operational needs. Annual leave may be granted during December.

ITEM G: Whether jury duty and attendance at National or State conventions shall be charged to the choice vacation period.

1. Jury Duty, Military Duty and leave to attend National or State conventions shall not be charged to the choice vacation period.

ITEM H: Determination of the maximum number of employees who shall receive leave during the choice vacation period.

JAF

- 1. Vacation and schedules for Mail Handlers will be by section and tour, the sections will be defined as follows:
- a. T1 Exterior, Interior
- b. T2 Entire Tour
- c. T3 Entire Tour
- 2. The number of Mail Handlers allowed on annual leave will be based upon percentages as outlined in this agreement.
- 3. The percentages will be based on the entire Mail Handler complement of the section, which shall only include PTRs, FTRs and unassigned regulars who normally work in the section.
- 4. The number of Mail Handlers allowed on annual leave at one time during the choice vacation period will be 22% per section.
- 5. Rounding off for vacation scheduling:
 - 1. Any number .5 and above goes to the next highest whole number.
 - 2. Any number less than .5 goes to the next lowest whole number.

ITEM I: The issuance of official notices to each employee of the vacation schedule approved for him/her.

- 1. The initial vacation sign up forms will be handed out by supervisors by December 1.
- 2. Mail Handlers shall submit the vacation sign up forms, in duplicate to their supervisors by January 15. The supervisor will return a signed and dated copy to the Mail Handler upon submission.
- 3. Decisions concerning the initial annual leave requests will be given by February 10.

JAP -

- 4. A complete vacation schedule of Mail Handlers will be given to the Branch President (in the event there is no Branch President then it shall be Local 300's designee) on or about February 15.
- 5. Each Mail Handler will receive a copy of his/her tour's vacation schedule on or about February 22 and a copy of the entire vacation schedule will be posted on the bulletin board.

ITEM J: Determination of the date and means of notifying employees of the beginning of the new leave year.

- 1. All Mail Handlers will be notified by November 1 of the beginning of the new leave year by posting on the bulletin board located on the workroom floor near the cafeteria.
- 2. The posting shall include the warning that if an employee does not receive his/her initial leave request form by December 7, the employee should immediately notify his/her supervisor to get a form.

ITEM K: Procedures for submissions of applications for annual leave during other than the choice period.

- 1. Requests for leave day, or days, other than leave requests which fall under the scope of Items C and D, must be submitted on form 3971. Approvals must be given on a first come, first served basis. Disposition of the request must be given to the employee by the end of two working days, or the employee is to consider the leave request approved.
- 2. When unscheduled leave is offered by management for Mail Handlers to leave early, approval will be by strict seniority on a tour/section basis. When Mail Handlers request to leave early, approval will be on a first come, first served basis. 3971s submitted

HP S/L will not be acted on until 2 hours after the first tour shift begins. Sections will be defined in Item H.

ITEM L: Whether overtime desired lists in Article 8 of the National Agreement shall be by section and/or tour.

- 1. The overtime desired sign up list will be posted 14 days prior to the new overtime quarter. The overtime list will be posted on the bulletin board near the employee's entrance.
- 2. Mail Handlers wishing to work overtime must sign the posted overtime desired sign up list. It is expected that Mail Handlers who place their names on the list will work the overtime when it is available. Newly converted full-time regular Mail Handlers or full-time regular Mail Handlers who bid on a new tour will have two weeks to place their names on the overtime desired list.
- 3. The overtime desired lists will be by tour.

In addition, a column next to the employee's name will be used to designate preferences as follows:

- a. Before tour overtime
- b. After tour overtime
- c. Days of rest overtime.

Mail Handlers may choose any or all of the preferences. It is agreed that the preference options are a cooperative Labor/Management Agreement to benefit all, but when there is an insufficient number of employees on a preference list to meet the overtime need, then those employees from another preference will be used before going off the list using inverse seniority.

3. A. The before tour (BT), after tour (AT) and scheduled day off (SDO) lists will be scored independently from one another. The



scheduled day off list will be maintained separately by day of the week and will be scored independently of one another.

- 4. The overtime desired lists will be conducted in accordance with Article 8 sections 5C of the National Agreement: that is, Mail Handlers who have placed their names on the overtime desired list will be selected in order of their seniority on a rotating basis.
- 5. All overtime lists will be secured and maintained in the front office (mail processing office).
- 6. All overtime lists will be readily available to be reviewed by supervisors and Mail Handlers. Overtime lists will be available to Mail Handler Union Representatives to be photocopied.
- 7. MDO or Management's designee will be responsible for the upkeep of the tour's overtime lists.
- 8. MDO or designated SDO in charge of the Mail Handler overtime lists have the responsibility to personally inform Mail Handlers of overtime work available, as early as possible. Before tour and day of rest overtime, 1 hour before the end of the tour the day before, or at least two hours before the overtime is scheduled to begin. After tour overtime, at least 1 hour before end of the Mail Handler's tour. Posted notices will not constitute proper notice.
- 9. If a Mail Handler on the overtime desired list has not provided the Postal Service with a current phone number, and if the employee's name is reached on the overtime list for a telephone call-in overtime opportunity, then the employee will be passed over and charged with an overtime opportunity which shall not be counted as an improper bypass.
- 10. A Mail Handler may remove his/her name from the overtime desired list by placing the request in writing and giving the request to his/her supervisor, with a copy to the union.



- 11. Removal of your name from the overtime desired list after being given orders to stay, or come in for overtime, does not relieve the Mail Handler from his/her responsibility for working that overtime.
- 12. Daily Full Time Volunteer Overtime Lists will be established as per Article 8.5D of the National Agreement. The sign up lists for this purpose will be kept in the tour office.
- 13. Anyone on a change of schedule or late (more than 8 units after scheduled start time) will go to the bottom of all OTDLs for that day or days. These employees may be used for overtime after the respective OTDL has been exhausted.

ITEM M, N and O: Light Duty Assignments.

- 1. No light duty assignments shall be created to the detriment of the full time regular employees of the Mail Handler craft holding bid assignments.
- 2. Any requests for light duty must be fully supported by medical certification attesting to the need for such assignment.
- 3. Light duty assignments will not be restricted to the Mail Handler craft. Mail Handlers on light duty may be assigned any job commiserate with the limitations of their particular disability and with their qualifications, to the extent such work is available, consistent with the provisions of the APWU Union.

ITEM P: The identification of assignments comprising a section when it is proposed to reassign within an installation employees excess to the needs of a section.



- 1. This item deals with the permanent reassignment of an employee, such as a reassignment that results from the abolishment of an occupied bid assignment that will no longer be in that section. Daily reassignments are address in Item T of this Local Memorandum of Understanding.
- 2. Sections for this Item will be as follows:
 - a. T1 Interior
 - b. T1 -- Exterior
 - c. T2 -- Interior
 - d. T2 -- Exterior
 - e. T3, Interior
 - f. T3 -- Exterior
- 3. When it becomes necessary to reassign employees because they are excess to the needs of the section, procedures outlined in Article 12.6C4d will be followed.
- 4. If at all possible, Mail Handlers whose bids have been abolished will remain on the same tour, with the same days of rest as the abolished bid, until they have had a chance to bid for a new job.
- 5. For permanent reassignments, management will make every effort to give any unassigned full time regular Mail Handlers a choice, based on seniority, if more than one vacancy exists.
- 6. Management agrees that when implementing abolishing or excessing positions, they will make every effort to keep the inconvenience of the affected employees to a minimum.
- 7. Mail Handlers reassigned out of the section, retain retreat rights to the section where their position was abolished or excessed. These retreat rights are to be exercised in accordance with the provisions of Article 12.6C4c of the National Agreement.



ITEM Q: The assignment of Mail Handler Union parking spaces.

1. If during the course of this agreement, the management of Mid-Hudson P&DC decides to implement a reserved parking policy for other than official vehicles, a reserved parking space will be provided for the Mail Handlers' Union, at a site to be determined at that time via a meeting between the Union and Management.

ITEM R: The determination as to whether annual leave to attend Union activities requested prior to determination of the choice vacation schedule is to be part of the total choice vacation plan.

1. Annual leave or LWOP requested by Mail Handler Union Representatives of the Mid-Hudson Branch of Local 300 for the purpose of conducting Union business as specified above shall not be unreasonably denied. Such leave shall not be charged to any leave percentages as outlined in this agreement.

ITEM S: Other items which are subject to local negotiations.

I. Bidding

- 1. Every reasonable effort shall be made by management to maximize the number of bid assignments wherein the rest days for Mail Handlers are consecutive.
- 2. Mail Handler bids will be posted on the official bulletin board located on the workroom floor near the cafeteria.

H

- 3. Copies of all Mail Handler bids will be given to the Mail Handlers Union prior to posting.
- 4. All vacant or newly established bids shall be posted for employees eligible to bid within 10 days after a determination has been made that the position is not to be reverted.
- 5. It is agreed that no Mail Handler assignment will be abolished unless and until same has been discussed with the Branch President (in the event there is no Branch President then it shall be Local 300's designee), Local 300, Mid-Hudson P&DC Branch, and prior written notice has been given to the Branch President (in the event there is no Branch President then it shall be Local 300's designee) and employees affected of intent to do so.
- 6. It is further agreed that notification will be given sufficiently in advance wherever possible to allow the Union a meaningful opportunity to bargain over the proposed change, should it request to. Good faith bargaining will include meeting, providing necessary information and considering Union counter proposals. No change will be implemented until such bargaining has come to an agreement or genuine impasse.
- 7. When management receives advance notice of a Mail Handler retirement, the incumbent's bid shall be posted far enough in advance of the retirement to minimize the period of vacancy. However, since employees have the right to withdraw retirement applications until the effective date of retirement, the successful bidder for the incumbent's assignment shall not be placed in the bid until the beginning of the bid cycle following the retirement date and the successful bidder's assignment shall not be posted until after the retirement date.
- 8. An updated seniority list of all Mail Handlers will be posted along with the bids.

II. Reposting

JAP

1. The determination of what constitutes a sufficient change of duties, scheduled days off or principle assignment area to cause the duty assignment to be reposted shall be left to the discretion of the Mail Handler Union Branch President (in the event there is no Branch President then it shall be Local 300's designee).

ITEM T: Local implementation of this Agreement relating to seniority, reassignments and posting.

I. Seniority

- 1. All daily assignments shall be made on the basis of seniority, within the following pecking order:
- A. Specific bid:
 - 1. Regular scheduled Mail Handlers
 - 2. Holiday scheduled Mail Handlers
 - 3. Overtime scheduled Mail Handlers
- B. Section
- C. Tour
- 2. An oncoming tour will not displace the tour that is on duty, unless there is a PTF, MHA or a casual working a job that a full-time regular on the oncoming tour holds as a bid.
- 3. Mail Handlers working outside their normal tour of duty, such as on a change of schedule or overtime, shall be considered junior Mail Handlers and shall be assigned to any work within their qualifications. This also applies to higher level Mail Handler assignments. Daily seniority does not apply to Mail Handlers working outside their normal schedule.
- 4. No Mail Handler, regardless of seniority, will be allowed to displace or bump another from assigned job or tour except through the prescribed bidding procedures.



- 5. Once reassigned, a Mail Handler will retain his/her seniority throughout the section and tour but will be junior to any Mail Handler properly holding a bid assignment or duty assignment.
- 6. Any Mail Handler who arrives to work more than 8 units late loses his/her seniority with respect to job assignment preferences within his/her bidded position and/or area. These late Mail Handlers will be assigned any available work within their bidded section. Specific bids are excluded.

II. Temporary reassignments

- 1. Sections for this Item shall be as defined in Item H.
- 2. Normally, an employee shall work the duty assignment for which the employee has been designated the successful bidder. However, when an employee is moved off the employee's duty assignment, the employee shall not be replaced by another employee. For temporary reassignments not covered by Article 25 of the National Agreement, the movement of people outside the bid assignment area will be as follows:
- a. Volunteers
- b. All casuals (temps) performing Mail Handler work
- c. All other crafts performing Mail Handler work
- d. MHAs
- e. All PTFs
- f. All Mail Handlers on overtime and on a change of schedule by juniority
- g. All Mail Handlers working their Holiday
- h. All unassigned regular Mail handlers
- i. All PTRs
- j. Full time regular Mail Handlers working their bid, section and schedule will be excessed by juniority, reassignment back to their section will be by seniority
- 3. No employee shall be allowed to displace or bump another employee properly holding a position or duty assignment.

JAP

- 4. A Mail Handler who volunteers to work an assignment other than his/her own, will be considered the junior Mail Handler for the remainder of the tour for the purpose of being reassigned under Part 2 of this section.
- 5. If it becomes necessary to assign a full-time regular Mail Handler on their normal schedule out of his/her section, the reassigned Mail Handler shall have the right to perform any Mail Handler duties being performed by non-Mail Handler craft employees, including casuals and MHAs in the section that they are reassigned to. If any problems arise, the SDO will consult with the Shop Steward on duty or the Branch President (in the event there is no Branch President then it shall be Local 300's designee).

III. Posting

- 1. An updated seniority list will be given to the Mail Handlers union within 3 days of request.
- 2. Whenever the Branch President (in the event there is no Branch President then it shall be Local 300's designee) presents documentation to establish the need for a new bid assignment, Management and the Union shall discuss the issue at the next Labor/Management meeting.
- 3. Documentation which will have an impact on the Mail Handler craft will be provided to the Mail Handlers Union at: PO Box 10066 Newburgh, NY 12552-0066 or the mail box located in the front office (mail processing office).

Such documentation shall include: safety talks, restriction notices, letters of warning, suspension notices, removal notices, step increase deferments and any other documentation subject to the provisions of Articles 17 and 31 of the National Agreement and Section 8 of the National Labor Relations Act.

JAP

Local Memorandum of Understanding

Between

The National Postal Mail Handlers Union Mid-Hudson Branch – Local 300 Division of L.I.U.N.A. – AFL-CIO

And

The United States Postal Service

Mid-Hudson P&DC

Located at

99 Enterprise Drive

Newburgh, New York 12555-9993

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into on October 23, 2013 at the Mid-Hudson P&DC, between the representative of the United States Postal Service, and the designated agent of the National Postal Mail Handlers Union, a Division of the Laborer's International Union of North America, AFL-CIO, pursuant to the Local Implementation Article of the 2011 National Agreement on the matters relating to the local conditions of employment.

Edward A. Kerner

Plant Manger

Mid-Hudson P&DC

U.S. Postal Service

Newburgh, NY 12555-9993

James R. Perkins

Branch President

NPMHU

Division of L.I.U.N.A.

AFL-CIO

JAP -